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KamaLa D, HARRIS
Atwrney General of California
GREGORY J. SALUTE
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
DESIREE [ KELLOGG
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No, 126461
110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100
San Diego, CA 92101 °
P.O. Box 85266 ‘
San Diego, CA 92186-5266
Telephone: (619) 645-2096
Facsimile: (619) 645-2061
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 5324

COSTCO CORP. DBA COSTCO
PHARMACY #454 -
115 Technology Drive ACCUSATION
Trvine, CA 92618 ' o

Pharmacy Permif No, PHY 41247
LAURA CODY MORRIS

29400 Bakers St,

Costa Mesa, CA

Pharmacist License No, RPH 46609

Respondents.

Complainant alleges:
PARTIES
1. Virginia Herold {Complamant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity
as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department Qf Consumer Affairs,
2. Onor about November 12, 1995, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Permit

Number PHY 41247 te Costeo Corp., doing business as Costeo Pharmacy #454 (Respondent
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| License was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will

‘Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

- sugpended or revoked,

Costco Pharmacy). The Pharmacy Permit was in full foree and effect at all times relevant to the
charges brought herein and will expire on Qctober 1, 2015, unless renewed.
3. Onor about August 19, 1993, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License

Number RPH 46609 to Laura Cody Morris (Respondent Laura Cody Morris). The Pharmacist

expire on June 30, 2015, unless renewed.
JURISDICTION
4. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Departinent of

Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws, All section references are to the

5, Section 4011 of the Code provides that the Board sha!l administer and enforce both
the Pharmacy Law [Bﬁzs, & Prof. Code, § 4000 et seq.} and the Uniform Conirolled Substances
Act [Health & Safety Code, § 11000 et seq.].

6. Section 4300(a) of the Code provides that every license issued by the Board may be

7. Section 4300.1 of the Code states:

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued license
by operation of law or by order or decision of the board or a court of law, the
placement of a license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a
licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any
investigation of, or action or disciplinary proceeding against, the licensee or to render
a decision suspending or revoking the license,

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS
8 Section 4301 of the Code stales in pertinent part:

The board shall take action against any holder of s license who is guilty of
unprofessional conduct or whose livense has been procured by fraud or
misrepresentation or issued by mistake, Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is
not limited to, any of the following:

(i) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the
United States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs....
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(0) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or
abetting the viclation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter
or of the applicable federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy,
including regulations established by the board or any other state or federal reguiatory
agency.

9. Section 4113(¢) of the Code states:

The pharmacist-in-charge shall be responsible for a phaymacy’s compliance
with all state and federal laws and regulations pertaining to the practice of pharmacy.

10. Health and Safety Code section 11153(a) states:

A presoription for a controlled substance shall only be issued for a legitimate
medical purpose by an individua! practitioner acting in the usual course of his or her
professional practice. The responsibility for the proper prescribing and dispensing of
conirolled substances is upon the prescribing practitioner, but a corresponding
responsibility rests with the pbharmacist who fills the prescription. Except as
authorized by this division, the following are not legal prescriptions: (1) an order
purporting to be a prescription which is 1ssued not in the usual course of
professional treatment or in legitimate and authorized research; or (2) an order for an
addict or habitual user of controlled substances, which is issued not in the course of
professional treatment or as part of an authorized narcotic treaitment program, for the
purpose of providing the user with controlied substances, sufficient to keep him or
her comfortable by maintaining customary use.

11, Section 1707.3 of title 16, California Code of Regulations states:

Prior to consultation as set forth in section 1707.2, a pharmacist shall review a
patient’s drug therapy and medication record before each preseription drug is
delivered. The review shall include sereening for severe potential drug therapy
problems. : '

12.  Section 1761 of title 16, Califomia Code of Regulations states:

{(2) No pharmacist shall compound or dispense any prescription which contains
any significant error, omission, irregularity, uncértainty, ambiguity or alteration,
Upon receipt of any such préscription, the pharmacist shall contact the prescriber 1o
obtain the information needed to validate the prescription.

(b) Even after conferring with the prescriber, a pharmacist shall not compound
or dispense a controlled substance preseription where the pharmacist knows or has
objective reason to know that sald prescription was not issued for a legitimate
medical purpose. '

Accusation.
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1 the leensing act fo pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and

' to Health and Safety Code section 11055(b)(1)(1) and a dangerous drug pursvant to Business and

COST RECOVERY
13.  Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertitent part, that the Beard may request the

administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of

enforcement of the case,

7 DRUGS

14, Ambien is the brand name for zolpidem, a Schedule I'V controlled substance pursuant
o Health and Safe}‘.y,Code section 11057(d)and a dangerous cdrug pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 4022, u

15, Klonopin is the brand name for clonazepam, a Schedule IV controfled substance

pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 11055(b)(1)(L) and a dangerous drug pursuant to
Business and Professions Code section 4022,

17, Oxycentin and OxvIR are brand names for oxycodone or oxycodone ER respectively

and are Schedule 11 controlled substances pursuant to Heaith and Safety Code section

1 1055(1:)}( 1YM) and dangerous drugs pursﬁant to Business and Professions Code section 4022,
18. m is the brand name for acetaminophen/oxycodone, a Schedule I controlled

substance pursuznt to Health and Safety Code section 11055(b)(1)(L) and a dangerous drug

pursuant to I%u;éiness andl Professions Code section 4022.

19.  Soma is the brand name for carisperodol, & Schedule IV controlled substance pursuant

Professions Code section 4022,
20, ¥Yicodin/Norco is the brand name for acetaminophen/hydrocodone, a Schedule 11
controiled subsiance pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 11056(e)(5) and a dangerous

drug pursmaht to Business and Professions Code section 4022,
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21, Xanax is the brand neme for alprazolam, & Schedule IV controlled substance pursuant
to Health and Safety Code section 1 IOSTCd)(l) and a dangerous drug pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 4022,

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

22.  From November 17, 1995 through February 21, iOI 4, Respondent Laura Morris was
the Pharmacist-in-Charge of Respondent Costeo Pharmaby.

23. Effective 2000 through Qctober 2009, Respondent Costeo Pharmacy implemented &
policy seiting forth the parameters for its pharmacists to dispense controlled substances to
patients. This policy and procedure provided that Respondent Costeo Pharmacy could only
support its pharmacist’s decision to decline to fill a Aprcseri'ptien for controlled substances if it was

“based on sound medical reasoning and the appropriate communication with the preseriber and

.the patient has ocourred.”

24, Effective November 28, 2009 through July 11, 2012, Respondent Costco Pharmacy
implemented a revised policy and procedure setting forth the parai‘ne’cefs for its pharmacists to

dispense controlled substances to patients. This policy and procedure provided that Respondent

Costeo Pharmacy would only support a pharmacist’s decision to deny filling a prés}cription for

controlled substances if that decision was roviewed and approved by a Regional Pharmacy
Supervisor. The policy and procedure further provided that “only in extreme cages and only uﬁon
collaboration with your Regional Pharmacy Supervisor will rafu.sal of pharmacy service be
considered, .. Prior to refusing to fill a prescription OR denying any immediate or future pharmacy
service for suspicion of frand, the pharmacist on duty or pharmacy manager must contact the
R.ﬂgiohal Pharmacy Supervisor... There must be no doubt that a prescription is fraudulent priar to
taking any action or refusing pharmacy service and then only with the proper approvals...If nesd
be, dispense enough of the medication until the prescriber can be contacted to confirm fraud.”

25. Effective July 12, 2012 through June 3, 201 3,’ Respondent Costeo Pharmacy
implemented a revised policy and procedure (Controlled Substance Dispensing Policy) setting

forth the parameters for its pharmacists to dispense controlied substances to patients. The revised

policy and procedure provided that “[wihen presented with a controlled substance prescription,
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Costeo pharmacists must balance providing a high level of member service with ensuring that the
preseription is valid and issved for a legitimate medical purpose. Each controlled substance

preseription should be evaluated for “when to fill, when to question, when 1o delay and when to

refuse.”™ The policy and pyocedure still required the Regional Pharmacy Supervisor’s review and
approval before the filling of a controlled substance prescription could be denied. In order to
deny ﬁliing g controlled substance prescription, a pharmacist had to show that there was “clear
evidence or sufftcient reason 1o suspect a forgery or otherwise invalid prescription” except if there
was “confirmed evidence of overlapping therapy” or “confirmation of a fraudulent preseiption.”
The policy and procedure further provided that “{wlith few exceptions (see Contraﬁe& Substance
Dispensing Policy) collaboration with your Regional Phaumacy Supervisor is necessary before
refusal of your pharmacy service... There must be no doubt that a prescription is fraudulent prior
to.taking any action or refusing pharmacy services.”

26, From 2000 through May 2013, the Regional Pharmacy Supervisor made the ultimate
decision as to whether to dispense 4 controlled substance prescription. A pharmacist could also
not contact law enforcement about a questionable controlled substance prescription without prior
approval and knowledge of the Regional Pharmacy Supervisor and Warehouse Management,
Pharmacists were disciplined for violating these policies and procedures.

27, Asarvesult of these policies and procedures, Respondents impeded pharmacists from
exercising their professional judgment to fill controlled substance prescriptions and to fulfill their
corresponding responsibility to ensure that controlled substance prescriptions were issued for
legitimate medical purposes. These policies and procedures further aliowed for the dispensing,
filling and furnishing of drugs without legitimate medical purposes by Respondents and for & lack
of tesearch or verifying if prescriptions were written for a legitimate medical purpose before
filling then, as discussed in the following paragraphs.

28.  From May 15, 2007 through August 25, 2010, Respondents filled and dispensed 156
controlled substancas presoriptions written by Dr. L.T. The average age of Dr. L.T.’s patients was
29 years ald, The majouity of these preseriptions were paid in cash. Patients traveled an average

of 33 miles from i, L.T.'s offices o Respondent Costeo Pharmacy. Dr, LT, was not cerfified ag
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| among other causes for discipline, gross negligence, repeated negligent acts, issuing controlled

Wooe ~3 O ot B L RS

California acoepted the surrender of Dr. L.T.'s osteopathic physician and surgeon certificate.

a pain managmrs:ient _pro\{ider or affiliated with the American Board of Physical Medicine and
Rehabilitation. There was no stepwise plan for anti-anxiety as Dr, I.;,KT.’S prescriptions were

written for an initial therapy that began with high doses of anti-anxiety medications without

evidence of prior therapy that would have suggested a stepwise approach.

29, On February 3, 2012, a Second Amended Accusation was filed againgt Dr. LT, for

substances prescriptions for an illegitimate purpose, meking and signing false documents,
unprofessional conduct for dispensing, prescribing and fignishing dangerous drugs without an
appropriate priot examination and medical indication to patients, excessive prescribing and

committing dishonest/corrupt acts, Effective March 14, 2012, the Osteopatl;.ic Medical Board of

30, From February 2, 2006 through July 5, 2006, Respondents filled and dispensed 20
prescriptions written by Dr.V.L. The average age of Dr. V.L.’s patients was 24 years old. Dr. |
V.L.’s prescriptions were written for an excessive quantity of controlled substances (i.e,,
hydrocodone/ APAP 10/325mg with the average number of tablets equaling 180) and unusually
high dosages or strength (j;’, ¢., 40-50 mp of hydrocodone and 1-1.5 mg of Tylenol per day).
Patients traveled an average of 17 miles from Dr, V.L.'s offices to Respondent Costco Pharmacy.
Dr. V.L. was not certified as a pain management pmvidle or affiliated with the American Board of
Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation.

31, OnJune 15, 2009, in the United States Diistr.ict Coutt for the Central District of
California, Dr, V.. pleaded guilty to 15 counts charging violations of Title 18 U.S.C. § 841
(a)(1), intentional and unlawful distribution and dispensing of Schedule I and 1T controlled
subgtances outside the scope of professional practice. Effective October 1, 2010, the Medical
Board of California :rstd‘opmd a Decision revoking his license for convictions of crimes that are
substantially related to the practice of medicine, violating fedefal laws regulating dangerous drugs
or controlled substances and engaging in acts involving dishonesty or contuption. |

32, Prom Tuly 27, 2005 through November 19, 2008, Respondents flled and dispensed 47

presoriptions written by Dr. C.G. The average age of Dr. C.G.’s patients was 26 years old.
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Patients traveled an average of 27 miles from Dr. C,(3’s offices to Respondent Costco Pharmacy,
Dr. C.G. was not certified as a pain management provider or affiliated with the American Board
of Physical Medicine and Rehabilitation. There was no stepwise plan for anti-anxiety as Dr.
C.G."s prescriptions were written for an initial therapy that began with high doses of anti-anxiety
médications without evidence of prior therapy that would have suggested a stepwise approach.
33, Onorabout June 11, 2008, Dr, C.(. was convicted upon her plea of nelo confendere
na criminai proceeding filed in Los Angeles County Superior Court to the felonies of unlawfully
" prescribing controlled substances, in violation of Health and Safety Code section 11153(s) and
prescribing or administering prescription drugs to an addict or habitual user, in violation of Health
and Safety Code section 11156, On or about September 12, 2008, a First Amended Accusation
was filed against Dr. .0 for among other causes for discipline, gross negligence, repeated
negligent acts, preseribing to an addiet, presaribing without appropriate examination, failure to
maintain adequate and accurate records and excessive prescribing. Effective March 23, 2009, Dr.
C3ls g}h‘jrsician and surgeon’s certificate was placed on probation for seven years by the Medical
Board of California,
FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

{Failing to Comply with Corresponding Responsibility
for Legitimate Controlled Substance Preseriptions)

34. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301(), for
violating Health and Safety Code section 11153(a), in that they failed to comply with their
corresponding responsibility to ensure that controlled substances were dispensed for a legitimate
medical prrpose when Respondents ;?gimished preseriptions for comroll}&d substances even though
“red flags™ weie present, indicating those prescriptions were not issued for a legitimate medical
purpose, a5 set forth in paragraphs 22 ﬁﬁrough 33 above, which are Incorporated herein by

reference.

Accusation
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SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Dispensing Controlled Substance Prescriptions with Significant Errors, Gmissinns,
Irregularities, Uncertainties, Ambiguities or Alterations)

35, Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301(o), for
violating title 16, California Code of Regulaﬁons, sections 1761(a) and (b) in that they dispénsed
prescriptions for controlled ‘substances, which contained significant errors, omissions,
irregularities, uncertainties, ambiguities or alterations, as set forth in paragraphs 22 through 33
above, which are incorporated herein by reference. ‘

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

‘ {(Unprofessional Conduct)

36. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under Code section 4301 for
unprofessional conduct in that they engaged in the activities described in paragraphs 22 through
33 above, which are incorporated herein by reference. |

| DISCIPLINARY CONSIDERATIONS

37, To determine the degree of &isaipliﬁe, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Costco

Pharmacy, Coroplainant alleges that on May 17, 2012, the Board issued Citation number CI12011

49350 against Respondent Costco Pharmacy for violating California Code of Regulations, title

16, section 1764 and Civil Code section 56.10 for the unauthorized disclosure of prescription and |

medical information, The Board issued a fine which Respondent paid.
PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Ciomplaiﬁant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and thét following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 41247 issued to Costeo
Corp., doing business as Costoo Pharmacy #454,

2. Revokingor sﬁgp@nding Pharmacist License Number RPH 46609 issued to Laura
Cody Morzis,

Accusation




10
11
12
13

14 |

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

3. Ordering Costeo Corp,, doing business as Costeo Pharmacy #454 and Laura Cody

Morris to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of

this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 125.3;

4. Taking such other-and further action as deemed necessary and proper,

DATED: .3(:9/// s _4{)(4%4%

SD2014708110
11024298 doc

GINIA HEROLD
Executiveiflcer
Board of Pharmacy
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California
Complainant

10

Avcusation







Accessibility Report





		Filename: 

		ac145324.pdf









		Report created by: 

		



		Organization: 

		







[Enter personal and organization information through the Preferences > Identity dialog.]



Summary



The checker found no problems in this document.





		Needs manual check: 2



		Passed manually: 0



		Failed manually: 0



		Skipped: 0



		Passed: 30



		Failed: 0







Detailed Report





		Document





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Accessibility permission flag		Passed		Accessibility permission flag must be set



		Image-only PDF		Passed		Document is not image-only PDF



		Tagged PDF		Passed		Document is tagged PDF



		Logical Reading Order		Needs manual check		Document structure provides a logical reading order



		Primary language		Passed		Text language is specified



		Title		Passed		Document title is showing in title bar



		Bookmarks		Passed		Bookmarks are present in large documents



		Color contrast		Needs manual check		Document has appropriate color contrast



		Page Content





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged content		Passed		All page content is tagged



		Tagged annotations		Passed		All annotations are tagged



		Tab order		Passed		Tab order is consistent with structure order



		Character encoding		Passed		Reliable character encoding is provided



		Tagged multimedia		Passed		All multimedia objects are tagged



		Screen flicker		Passed		Page will not cause screen flicker



		Scripts		Passed		No inaccessible scripts



		Timed responses		Passed		Page does not require timed responses



		Navigation links		Passed		Navigation links are not repetitive



		Forms





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Tagged form fields		Passed		All form fields are tagged



		Field descriptions		Passed		All form fields have description



		Alternate Text





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Figures alternate text		Passed		Figures require alternate text



		Nested alternate text		Passed		Alternate text that will never be read



		Associated with content		Passed		Alternate text must be associated with some content



		Hides annotation		Passed		Alternate text should not hide annotation



		Other elements alternate text		Passed		Other elements that require alternate text



		Tables





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Rows		Passed		TR must be a child of Table, THead, TBody, or TFoot



		TH and TD		Passed		TH and TD must be children of TR



		Headers		Passed		Tables should have headers



		Regularity		Passed		Tables must contain the same number of columns in each row and rows in each column



		Summary		Passed		Tables must have a summary



		Lists





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		List items		Passed		LI must be a child of L



		Lbl and LBody		Passed		Lbl and LBody must be children of LI



		Headings





		Rule Name		Status		Description



		Appropriate nesting		Passed		Appropriate nesting










Back to Top



